
Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House, Botchergate,  Carlisle, 

Cumbria  CA1 1RD Tel 01228 606060  Email 
democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

Wednesday, 8 January 2020

To:  The Chair and Members of the Scrutiny 
Advisory Board - Adults

Agenda
SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD - ADULTS

A meeting of the Scrutiny Advisory Board – Adults will be held as follows: 

Date: Thursday 16 January 2020
Time: 10.00 am
Place: Conference Room A and B, Cumbria House, Carlisle

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services

NB A PRE-MEETING OF THE BOARD WILL BE HELD AT 9.30AM IN CONFERENCE 
ROOM A AND B TO WHICH ALL MEMBERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND. 

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to: Lorraine Davis
Direct Line: 07929164805
Email: lorraine.davis@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



MEMBERSHIP

Conservative (6) Labour (4) 
Mr A Bowness
Mr LN Fisher
Mr D Gawne
Dr S Haraldsen
Mr K Hitchen
Mr GRPM Roberts

Mrs C Bowditch
Ms C Driver
Ms C McCarron-Holmes
Mr M Wilson (Chair)

Liberal Democrat (3)
Mr W Clark
Mr A Connell
Mr N Cotton

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
www.cumbria.gov.uk  

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Democratic Services Unit at the address 
overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/


A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
  

2  MEMBERSHIP

To report and note changes to the membership of the Board.
  

3  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.



7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners). 
  

4  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda.
  

5  MINUTES

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Scrutiny Advisory Board 
– Adults held on 4 October 2019 (copy enclosed).
  (Pages 7 - 12)

6  ADULT SOCIAL CARE RESHAPING

To receive a presentation by the Interim Executive Director – People (copy enclosed).
  (Pages 13 - 26)

7  BARROW IN FURNESS DRUGS DEATHS

To consider a report by the Interim Executive Director – People (copy enclosed).
  (Pages 27 - 30)

8  SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT

To consider a report by Interim Executive Director – People (copy enclosed).
  (Pages 31 - 42)



9  ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING

To consider a report by the Interim Executive Director – People (copy enclosed).
  (Pages 43 - 46)

10 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting of the Scrutiny Advisory Board – Adults is scheduled for 
30 March 2020 at 10.00 am in County Offices, Kendal.
  



This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD - ADULTS

Minutes of a Meeting of the Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults held on Friday, 4 
October 2019 at 10.00 am at Committee Room 1 - County Offices, Kendal, LA9 
4RQ

PRESENT:

Mr M Wilson (Chair)

Mrs C Bowditch
Mr A Bowness
Mr W Clark
Mr A Connell
Mr N Cotton

Ms C Driver
Mr LN Fisher
Mr K Hitchen
Ms C McCarron-Holmes

Also in Attendance:-

Mrs L Davis - Democratic Services Officer
Mr D Stephens - Strategic Policy & Scrutiny Adviser
Ms C Whalley - Assistant Director - Adults
Mr D Houston - Senior Manager - Health and Care Integration
Ms A Halliwell - Senior Manager Safeguarding and Care Governance
Mr A Horrobin - Safeguarding Adults Service Manager
Mr M Humble - Senior Manager-Learning Disability/Mental 

Health/Autism
Mr P Latimer - County Manager - Social Care

10 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr D Gawne, Dr S Haraldsen and Mr G 
Roberts. 

11 MEMBERSHIP

Members noted that Mr A Wonnacott was substituting for Mr G Roberts for this 
meeting only.

12 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest at the meeting.

13 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be not excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda.

7

Agenda Item 5



14 MINUTES

With the following amendments to page 9, second paragraph, the word To be 
changed to The and thanks be changed to thanked it was 

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2019 be agreed as an 
accurate record and signed by the Chair.

15 SHARED LIVES

Ms P Fox and Mr A Robinson, Shared Lives Coordinators, attended the meeting 
and gave a presentation on the scheme that cared for people in ordinary homes by 
the people who lived in the community.   The officers outlined the key principles of 
Shared Lives, who it was able to support, eligibility and how the scheme was 
funded.

Members welcomed the scheme and congratulated the officers on their obvious 
enthusiasm for it.   Officers confirmed that, although it was a more cost effective 
alternative to other types of care, cost was not the driving force behind it.  It gave a 
broader choice of support for people and promoted independence.  The officers 
outlined the number of arrangements already in place in the county.  Members 
noted that this scheme had links with the Council’s Thriving Community work.

Members highlighted the importance of reliable public transport to enable people to 
maintain their independence.
 
Members, to conclude, thanked the officers for their attendance and it was agreed to 
circulate a cost comparative of the highest shared lives placement (band 3) with the 
cost of residential care package.

RESOLVED, that

(1) the position be noted;

(2) figures comparing the cost of the highest (Band 3) shared lives placement 
with the cost of residential care package be provided to members.

16 SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT

The Senior Manager – Safeguarding presented a report providing an update and 
analysis of adult safeguarding activity for the first quarter 2019/2020, briefing 
members on progress against the key areas of performance relating to Making 
Safeguarding Personal, providing a benchmark against other local authorities and 
describing actions planned to strengthen and consolidate improvements in adult 
safeguarding in Cumbria through the Safeguarding Adults Board.

8



The report highlighted an increase in numbers of episodes of safeguarding and the 
Senior Manager outlined the safeguarding process where there has been focused, 
targeted work to improve services by ensuring a consistent response.  Members 
noted that there had been a 10% decrease in the number of desired outcomes 
achieved for individuals.  The officer confirmed that this would be  monitored and 
reported back to the Board.

The Senior Manager agreed to change the formatting of data in the report for better 
comparative reading.  A member referred to the low figures of enquiries by type of 
abuse in South Lakeland and wondered if lessons could be learned from that area.  
Members recognised that areas of deprivation were more likely to have an impact 
on figures.  In answer to a suggestion to carry out a “deep dive” in the Allerdale 
area, officers said that a consistent approach to the county’s reporting procedures 
was needed.
 
To conclude the Officer outlined various updates from the Cumbria Safeguarding 
Adults Board.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

17 DEVELOPMENT OF REASONABLE OFFER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
IN CUMBRIA

Members received a report and presentation by the Senior Manager, Adults 
providing an overview of the procedure followed in Adult Social Care for calculating 
a personal budget to meet people’s needs for social care support.

The presentation covered the Council’s principles, the calculation of personal 
budgets, an explanation of a reasonable offer and how it was formed.  The officer 
highlighted that the personal budget was the cost to the local authority of meeting 
the person’s assessed care and support needs.  The reasonable offer considered 
value for money and affordability of meeting those needs in different settings.

Members queried the costs for different care packages and the number of people in 
receipt of personal budgets.  The officer explained that everyone who had statutory 
needs would have a personal budget but it was person specific and there was a 
need for flexibility.  Direct payments were mentioned and the transparency of the 
process.  

In discussion of the process, concerns were raised by members on the amount of 
information that clients needed to absorb when having the personal budget 
conversations with social workers.  A member raised a query on how clients were to 
understand the development of the assessment calculations.  It was felt that the 
setting of the conversation framework and investment in the social workers was 
needed.  The Senior Manager advised that an IT system would be available to aid 
calculation and this was welcomed by members.  Members also raised the rights of 
appeal. 

9



Following on from the discussion, a member raised concerns about parental carers 
assessment not taking place and people’s concerns undertaking assessments, in 
case the payments were reduced.  The Assistant Director - (Deputy DAS) hoped the 
restructure currently taking place in Adult Social Care would address these issues.

RESOLVED, that

(1)  the report be noted;

(2) figures on the numbers of people in receipt of a personal budget and a 
breakdown on the levels of funding provided for different packages of care 
be circulated to members.

18 ACTION PLAN TO DELIVER THE CUMBRIA HEALTHWATCH REPORT 
ON PEOPLE WITH A LEARNING DISABILITY

Members received a report from the Senior Manager-Learning Disability/Mental 
Health/Autism on the action plan that had been developed following the publication 
of the Cumbria Healthwatch report, “What does a good life look like for People with 
Learning Difficulties in Cumbria? – A Platform for Change”.  An action plan had 
been developed to be a live document to be updated and shared with partners on a 
regular basis.  The Learning Disability and Autism Partnership Board had agreed to 
be the conduit for the development and monitoring of the plan.

The officer outlined that one of the key findings from the Cumbria Healthwatch 
report was that many people with a learning disability were happy with the support 
received but that expectations and aspirations were low.  The main issues identified 
for people with a learning disability were friends, relationships and loneliness and a 
number of actions to address these issues had already taken place.  

In discussion, the Chair raised the issue of health inequalities for those with learning 
disabilities  Members welcomed the report and suggested actions, including social 
mapping of opportunities available.  Members suggested input from carers, parents, 
individuals, businesses and the LEP into the action plan.  It was further suggested 
that links to the Learning Disability and Autism Disability Partner Board be made.

RESOLVED, that 

(1) the report be noted;

(2) updates to the Action Plan be circulated to members of the Board for 
information on a six monthly basis;

(3) the inequalities for those with learning difficulties be raised at the relevant 
forum.

10



19 DELAYED TRANSFERS OF CARE

The Board members received a report that looked at the performance of Cumbria 
with regard to Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOCs).  The report covered the current 
situation and the understanding of what the drivers were for the system’s 
performance.

Although Cumbria hadn’t met its Better Care Fund (BCF) target in the first quarter, 
an improvement in July meant that Cumbria was now meeting its target.  Current 
action was being undertaken on a number of fronts to address the DTOC situation. 
These included a system wide review of the use of STRATA (the referral and 
resource matching IT system) and the establishment of short term intervention 
teams.  Members were pleased to note the appointment of a countywide manager to 
strengthen the service area and the intention to have administrators on wards to 
alleviate pressures on nursing time.  Assistance to help reduce DTOCs had been 
accepted from the LGA.  The Assistant Director - (Deputy DAS) informed members 
that a joint Council and Health workshop for frontline staff on the best way forward 
had been arranged to take place in the next few weeks.  

A lengthy discussion took place around the variance in DTOCs between the North 
and South of the county, the Discharge to Assess programme and the ramifications 
that lack of identified funding had on the way of working in the south of the county.  
The discharge time for mental health and dementia patients was also discussed.  
Members requested comparative figures between Cumbria and other local 
authorities nationally.  

It was

RESOLVED, that

(1) comparator information on DTOCs with other local authorities be 
circulated to members;

(2) information from the report and discussion be fed back to the Scrutiny 
Performance Working Group;

(3) feedback on the performance of the short term intervention teams be 
provided to the Board members.

20 ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING

The Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Adviser introduced his report updating members 
of new and updated items of significance to the Adults Board.  

Members were informed that the Forward Plan from 1 October to 30 November 
included the key decision on Integrated Commissioning Arrangements with North 
Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group.  The Scrutiny Performance Working Group 
had met on 3 July and progress had been made in a number of areas such as an 
increase in the number of foster carers and the rebranding of Cumbria Care.

11



Scrutiny Management Board had, at its meeting in September, agreed the 
continuation of the Joint Advisory Group for a further twelve months.  The officer 
informed the Board that the focus would be on the work undertaken to prevent and 
mitigate the impact of Adverse Childhood Experiences throughout life.

Members considered the Board’s work programme which was appended to the 
report.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

21 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Scrutiny Advisory Board – Adults be held 
on 16 January 2020 at 10.00 am at Cumbria House, Carlisle.

The meeting ended at 12.40 pm

12



Serving the people of Cumbria

Adult Social Care 

Reshaping

13

A
genda Item

 6



Serving the people of Cumbria

Current Structure

14



Serving the people of Cumbria

Assessments, Reassessments & 

Reviews (new business and 

ongoing commitments) 

M
a
n

a
g

in
g

 

n
e

w
 d

e
m

a
n

d

(d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
)

Culture and practice change

(strength based)

What needs to Change to Improve? 

3

15



Serving the people of Cumbria

Aim of ASC Reshaping
• To create an Adult Social Care structure that is better aligned to the 

revised target operating model. Moving to this structure will create 

capacity and focus to achieve greater consistently across Cumbria in 

relation to:

– Promoting Independence and ensure best outcomes for all our 

people

– Managing demand

– Keeping our customers at the heart of everything we do

– Working with stakeholders to support communities to thrive

– Focus upon the most vulnerable 

– Embedding strength based culture and practice as the way we work 

in Cumbria

– Adopting and embedding a ‘think family’ approach across People

16



Serving the people of Cumbria

Key Changes

The key changes in the final structure are: 

• A thematic structure which will align Senior Managers and teams 

to a specific service area. (Long Term, Short Term, Safeguarding 

and Mental Health, Learning Disabilities)

• A new Safeguarding Team 

• A separate Occupational Therapy Service in Long Term 

Interventions Team

• The roles of Principal Social Worker and Service Manager / 

Principal Occupational Therapist

• The role of Advanced Practice Lead

• Changes to the ASYE policy

• Clear distinction between different practitioner roles

• An On Call rota for Senior and Service Managers

17



Serving the people of Cumbria

Engagement

• Learned from Employee survey 2018

• Collaborative approach – great turn out at every point

• Over 350 consultation responses received and fully considered, 

including alternative structures

• Over 120 1:1’s 

18



Serving the people of Cumbria

Final Structure

19



Serving the people of Cumbria

20



Serving the people of Cumbria

21



Serving the people of Cumbria

22



Serving the people of Cumbria

Long Term – Occupational Therapy

23



Serving the people of Cumbria

24



Serving the people of Cumbria

Mental Health and Learning 

Disabilities – current structure

25



Serving the people of Cumbria

Thank you

26



SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD - ADULTS

Meeting date: 16th January 2020

From: Lesley Graham, Public Health Locality Manager 

Barrow in Furness Drugs Deaths

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 This report seeks to provide an update on the intensive activity in Barrow in 
Furness to address the recent spike in drug poisoning deaths. 

2 Issues for Scrutiny

2.1 Barrow Drugs Deaths Response Group was set up in response to an 
increased number of drug poisoning deaths in South Cumbria from 
December 2017. 

2.2 The role of the Group is to coordinate actions to prevent further drug 
poisoning deaths, and to support those impacted by drug misuse in South 
Cumbria. 

2.3 All actions have been informed by the best available evidence and guidance, 
shared intelligence, lessons learnt through review of drug poisoning deaths 
in Cumbria and elsewhere, and stakeholder views.

3 Background

3.1 Drug poisoning deaths can be due to prescription and over-the-counter 
drugs, or due to illegal drugs.  They are mostly accidental poisonings but 
some are suicides.  They are an important cause of death in both middle-
aged and young adults, leading to the avoidable loss of many years of life. 
The majority of those who die are male. 

3.2 Drug poisoning deaths in England have been increasing since 2013 and now 
stand at the highest level ever recorded. This is thought to be due to a 
combination of factors including increased availability of heroin, increasing 
rates of suicide, more people using multiple drugs and/or alcohol at once, 
increased prescription of some medicines, coupled with improved reporting 
of drug deaths.

27

Agenda Item 7



3.3 About 70% of drug poisoning deaths are ‘drug misuse deaths’.  This means 
deaths due to drug abuse or dependence, or poisonings which involve a 
‘controlled’ drug (illegal drugs, but also some strong prescription drugs such 
as morphine or tramadol).  The majority of these deaths will involve an illegal 
drug, but many will involve other prescription or over-the counter-drugs as 
well, and a few will be just due to prescription drugs.  In other words this 
issue is not just about illegal drug use.

3.4 During December 2017, concerns were raised locally about the number of 
suspected drug poisoning deaths that were being reported across South 
Cumbria. In response to this, a multiagency group, consisting of 
representatives from public health, Cumbria County Council, the police, 
social services, the ambulance service, primary and secondary care, Unity 
and The Well was formed. The aim of this South Cumbria Drug Poisoning 
Death Response Group was to try and minimise the harm from drugs and 
drug poisoning in Cumbria.

3.5 As a result of the work of this group drugs deaths in Barrow have reduced. 
Including the initial spike in Barrow locality, there have been 26 deaths & 28 
‘near misses’ since December 2017. There has been a marked slowdown in 
the last few months, with 4 deaths reported since June 2019. Details of 
those individuals who have been brought to the attention to the Police have 
been shared with Unity and The Well. There is an acceptance that the speed 
of sharing this information has contributed to saving lives. It could be argued 
that without this intensive work, the number of deaths would be much higher.

3.6  

Through the work of the South Cumbria Drugs Poisoning Death Response 
Group, a number of initiatives have been implemented. These are listed 
below;

 A partnership approach: The multidisciplinary nature of the group 
has meant regular dialogue between agencies. This has led to 
increased understanding, partnership working and information 
sharing. It is hoped that these strengthened relationships will help to 
improve pathways, provide more ‘joined-up’ care, and ultimately save 
lives. 

 A trigger plan for near misses: A trigger plan has been developed 
to try and minimise the risk of death after a ‘near miss’ event. The 
police act as a central hub for reporting of near misses, and people 
identified to be at risk are supported with assertive outreach. There 
were almost 30 near misses identified during 2018, and the majority 
of these are working with Unity and/or The Well.

 Police operation: There has been a successful 10-month police 
operation to target county lines that has resulted in the arrests of 30 
people.

28



 Type 1 diabetes support: The secondary care diabetes team and 
Unity have worked together to develop pathways and protocols to 
ensure that people who have type 1 diabetes and also have a history 
of drug misuse receive the care that they need. 

 Education: Two education sessions were held for the prescribing 
leads at G.P. practices across South Cumbria. The findings of this 
review were shared and best practice in terms of prescribing for long 
term pain management was discussed. Unity has also delivered 
training sessions to junior doctors at Furness General Hospital (FGH).

 Naloxone: Every opiate user, as well as individuals attending the 
needle exchange at Unity, have been issued with a Naloxone pen (if 
they are willing to take one) or a prescription for one.

 Assertive outreach/hospital in-reach: The Well provided a hospital 
in-reach service to people undergoing alcohol detox at Furness 
General Hospital (FGH) since July 2018. They also provided assertive 
outreach to people who are identified by the trigger plan (described 
above). The level of engagement amongst those identified has been 
high, and the programme has had a significant impact on service 
users. The Well are able to offer a wide range of personalised support 
activities. These can range from support groups and clubs (such as 
football, gardening, yoga and mindfulness) to one-to-one 
psychological and practical support. Sadly funding for this element of 
the response has now ended. Work is underway to identify alternative 
funding streams so that this valuable work can be reinstated

 Egerton Court Wellbeing Hub: A wellbeing hub contained within a 
flat at Egerton Court has been developed and is now open. The flat 
provides support to vulnerable adults with drug or alcohol addiction 
and aims to address additional mental health or social issues. It also 
brings a strong partnership presence to the area, supports community 
engagement and is helping to build trust amongst residents. 

3.6 Egerton Court Wellbeing Hub opened on Wednesday 30th January 2019 
and a number of tenants have been through the Hub every day to receive 
the necessary support from agencies such as The Well, Mind, Women’s 
Community Matters, CADAS and Health & Wellbeing Coaches. Partners are 
reporting that some of the tenants were not known to agencies previously.

3.7 The Well staff the Hub for the majority of the time, including out of hours in 
the evening, and the Police also support the Hub by ensuring their proactive 
response team are available during Hub opening hours.

3.8 The Egerton Lives evaluation that took place prior to the Hub opening, as a 
benchmark. Subsequent evaluations have evidenced that tenants felt that 
Egerton Court had improved over the last 12 months, with the majority 
confirming they have used the Hub for support ranging from general advice 

29



to drugs and alcohol issues. The partners in the Hub work with tenants to 
build relationships and trust to further support their needs ensuring that the 
Hub continues to be appropriate to the tenants’ requirements.

3.9 Since the initial spike in drug related deaths in Barrow 2 years ago the group 
has continued to meet on a bi-monthly basis. Valuable networks and 
systems have been implemented, both at a locality level and County level. 
Information is now shared quicker and more often than it has previously. 

3.10 Cumbria recently launched a Local Drugs Information System. This is an 
interactive multi- agency system for professionals likely to come across the 
use of New Psychoactive Substances, (which were previously known as 
legal highs) and/or adulterated traditional drugs. This allows for the 
cascading of information or warnings to appropriate staff and when deemed 
necessary to send alerts to specific target audiences of service users and/or 
the media/public.

3.11 There is no doubt that the work that has taken place since the initial spike 
has had a major impact on reducing the number of drugs deaths. However, 
there is still work to be done to maintain this momentum going forward and 
the Barrow group will continue to meet to ensure that this happens. 

Lesley Graham
Public Health Locality Manager – Barrow
22nd December 2019

Appendices

No appendices

Previous Relevant Council or Executive Decisions

No previous relevant decisions.

Background Papers

No background papers

Contact: Lesley Graham, Public Health Locality Manager – Barrow
Email: Lesley.graham@cumbria.gov.uk 
Tel: 07966111730

30



1 | P a g e

SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD – ADULTS

Meeting date: 16th January 2020

From: Andrew Horrobin, Senior Manager Safeguarding 
           Adults

SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK OF ABUSE AND NEGLECT

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

 To provide an update and analysis of adult safeguarding activity for the Quarter 2 
2019/2020.

 To brief Members on progress against the key areas of performance relating to Making 
Safeguarding Personal.

 To provide a benchmark against other Local Authorities in the North West region. 

 To update the board on the safeguarding developments in Adult Social Care ensuring 
people are safe and the Local authority fulfils its statutory duty under the Care Act 2014 
(Implemented 1/4/2015). 

 To describe the actions planned to strengthen and consolidate improvements in Adult 
Safeguarding in Cumbria through Cumbria Safeguarding Adults Board.

31

Agenda Item 8



2 | P a g e

2.0 ISSUES FOR SCRUTINY

There were 601 Individuals associated with the total 674 Episodes of Safeguarding 
Concerns /Enquiries which were raised in the Quarter 2 of 2019/2020. This continues 
to evidence that some people have more than one episode in a measured period.

In comparison with Quarter 2 2018/19 this is an increase of 167 (38%) individuals and 
an increase of 154 (30%) episodes that were raised. This shows a slight slowing down 
of the rate of referrals when comparing with 12 months ago, but it should be noted the 
number of individuals for the first time in 6 quarters has exceeded 600 people.  The 
number of episodes is not exceptional and might be indicative of fewer repeats. 

The increase in numbers from Quarter 3 18/19 onwards is predominantly due to an 
evaluation and improvement in processes and methodology leading to improvement in 
the numbers of logged concerns.  Specific work across the teams has been 
undertaken to ensure that all concerns logged irrespective of whether it is believed 
they will progress through the safeguarding process.

Overall: This increased level continues to demonstrate the change in practice still but 
it does not infer an increase in the demand rate for this service. Levels are comparable 
with the earlier reporting years of 2014/15 and 2015/16.

REPEAT CONCERNS

Figure 1 - Number of Persons By Number of Repeats Qtr. 2 19/20

Recent developments in this area now ensure that reporting of repeats now is within 
an 18-month timeframe to ensure any repeat concerns are contemporaneous and not 
historical. There is also automatic flagging to managers where an individual has had 
three concerns raised on their case file. This requires review by the manager to 
ensure safety measures are in adequate and proportionate. 

There is now a weekly report generated of all repeat concerns to identify where 
safety measures have not been successful which allows for further scrutiny and 
where required further mitigations in the safety plan.

1 2 3 4 5
More 

than 5

541 50 7 3 0 0

Period Individuals Episodes

Quarter 3 18/19 582 669
Quarter 4 18/19 513 602
Quarter 1 19/20 571 633
Quarter 2 19/20 601 674
Totals: 2267 2578

0

200

400

600

800

Quarter 3 18/19 Quarter 4 18/19 Quarter 1 19/20 Quarter 2 19/20

Individuals Episodes

32



3 | P a g e

Caveats:
The data refers only to those 
persons passing into the 
safeguarding pathway which is 
consistent with national data.  
Cumbria’s internal reporting 
includes referrals that do not 
pass into the pathway and so 
those numbers will be higher.

Gaps in the data indicate LA’S 
NOT able to provide quarterly 
data at this time, and this could 
skew the positioning of 
performance.

The data should therefore only 
be used for a general 
understanding of Cumbria’s 
position in relation to the 
others. 

Indications to date:
For both measures Cumbria 
is not evidencing as being 
an outlier and is comparable 
with a number of other LA’s.

Salford
Sefton
St Helens
Stockport
Tameside
Trafford
Warrington
Wigan
Wirral

Caveats:
This data refers only to those cases passing into the SG pathway which is consistent with national data.
Cumbria internal reporting includes referrals that do not pass into the SG pathway and so
    will be higher.

Gaps in the data indicate LA's unable to return at this time, and so could skew the
  positioning of performance.
This data should only therefore be used for general understanding of Cumbria's position 
  in relation to others.   
   i.e. In both measures Cumbria is not showing as an outlier and in fact is relatively comparable 
  with the results for other LA's.

2.2 COMPARISON OF ON THE NUMBER OF PEOPLE FOR WHOM CONCERNS 
WHERE RECEIVED ACROSS THE NORTH WEST REGION

Comparison with the North West for the 17/18 and 18/19 period evidences that 
Cumbria’s levels are broadly similar.

The charts below evidence the 19/20 to Quarter 2 and continue to evidence that 
Cumbria is not an outlier. The first graph simply counts persons and the second 
provides a proportional view by comparing with volume of population to provide an 
more equitable comparison.

Cumulative reporting from the North West Performance Leads on 
Adult 

Safeguarding.

33



4 | P a g e

3 THE VOLUME OF CONCERNS RECEIVED ON INDIVIDUALS BY AGE BAND

Figure 3 and Table 1 for just Quarter 2 19/20 continues to indicate the highest level of 
referrals for working age 18 to 64 and is at a similar level to last quarter.  The 85 to 94 
age band is however showing a rise.

   
    Figure 3: Age band, total number of Individuals per quarter

    Table 1: Age band, as per Safeguarding Adults Return for Qtr2  2019/20 (SAC) 

Age Band 18 to 64 65 to 74 75 to 84 85 to 94 95+ Grand Total

Individuals Involved In 
Safeguarding Concerns 150 49 87 115 18 419

Individuals Involved In Section 42 
Safeguarding Enquiries 95 20 22 38 5 180

Individuals Involved In Other 
Safeguarding Enquiries 2 0 0 0 0 2

Totals 247 69 109 153 23 601

34



5 | P a g e

2.2 SOURCE OF CONCERNS

In quarter 2 19/20 674 concerns were raised similar to that of Quarter 3 18/19.

Average number of concerns raised per quarter is now 650.

Evaluation of data suggests Social Care and Health staff are still the most usual 
source of referral:  A generic source value of “Other “has been removed from IAS 
earlier in the year.  This should cause what has been the 3rd highest source value to 
be more usefully recorded.

 Table 2: Source of Concerns / Enquiries started in Period.

3.0 EPISODES BY TYPE OF ABUSE

For all completed episodes in the period: by the nationally reported group types.

As usual there are some small changes in the overall levels of some of the abuse 
types with the four top most identified type of abuse remaining as Physical, Neglect 
and Acts of Omission, Financial and Emotional/Psychological.

Modern Slavery, Sexual Exploitation and Discriminatory abuse remain at negligible 
levels.  

Table 3: Enquiries by Type of Abuse for Quarter 2 2019/20

Source Agency Quarter 3 
18/19

Quarter 4 
18/19

Quarter 1 
19/20

Quarter 2 
19/20

Grand Total

Social Care Staff 268 215 232 277 992
Health  Staff 180 162 180 212 734
Other 125 127 115 89 456
Police 47 45 51 37 180
Family Member 24 30 33 36 123
Housing 10 12 9 7 38
Friend/Neighbour 3 1 1 6 11
Self Referral 4 6 9 7 26
Care Quality Commission 6 2 2 3 13
Education/ Training / Workplace 1 2 0 0 3
Other Service User 1 0 1 0 2
Total Per Quarter 669 602 633 674 2578

Types of Abuse Allerdale Copeland Furness
South 

Lakeland
Carlisle Eden

Grand 
Total

Percentage 
of Total

Physical 42 24 32 34 95 35 262 32.6% 
Sexual 9 7 9 11 12 4 52 6.5% 
Emotional and Psychological 28 12 22 17 34 8 121 15.1% 
Financial 34 17 20 13 38 11 133 16.6% 
Discriminatory 0 0 0 2 1 0 3 0.4% 
Organisational 3 0 1 2 1 0 7 0.9% 
Neglect and Acts of Omission 33 22 25 25 36 30 171 21.3% 
Domestic Abuse 4 1 8 4 4 3 24 3.0% 
Sexual Exploitation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 
Modern Slavery 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0.2% 
Self Neglect 8 3 3 4 8 2 28 3.5% 
Total of Main Abuse Types 161 86 121 113 229 93 803

*Mulple types of abuse can be identified per episode

Change Directiion

No 
signifcant 
changes to 

the last 
quarter.

35



6 | P a g e

3.1 BENCHMARKING DATA AGAINST NORTH WEST IS AVAILABLE AS FOLLOWS:

Comparison data for Quarter 2 19/20 

 Figure 4: Safeguarding by Allegation type, average percentage the North West and Cumbria for Qtr2 1920

In general this pattern as shown in Figure 4, demonstrates that identification of risk is not 
dissimilar and is in line with our North West comparators. 

There only exception being Neglect and Acts of Omission. The 18/19 and as per Quarter 2 
19/20 benchmarking indicated that the average level for the North West was at 30%, 
Cumbria was 20% but is now lower reporting at 16%,from 17% in Quarter 1. Enquires 
indicate this may be due to interpretation of the concern at point of referral. This has been 
picked up with operational teams during the threshold tool guidance implementation and 
training sessions to ensure a consistent application internally. This issue will be shared with 
partners via the Cumbria Safeguarding Adults Board to ensure referrals reflect this. 

This area continues to be monitored to recognise and then interpret data indicating 
emerging patterns.  As new risk elements are being identified these will be added to 
recording systems. e.g. Prevent, and will be added to reporting when available.

36



7 | P a g e

Not Progressed

Progressed to 
Safeguarding 

Referral
Not 

Progressed

Progressed to 
Safeguarding 

Referral
Not 

Progressed

Progressed to 
Safeguarding 

Referral
Not 

Progressed

Progressed to 
Safeguarding 

Referral
Not 

Progressed

Allerdale 26.24% 73.76% 35.54% 64.46% 36.48% 63.52% 26.32% 73.68%
Carlisle 28.99% 71.01% 31.82% 68.18% 36.00% 64.00% 29.19% 70.81%
Copeland 28.57% 71.43% 39.68% 60.32% 34.21% 65.79% 27.38% 72.62%
Eden 24.05% 75.95% 19.61% 80.39% 27.42% 72.58% 25.00% 75.00%
Furness 27.93% 72.07% 20.35% 79.65% 16.67% 83.33% 22.30% 77.70%
South Lakeland 32.20% 67.80% 23.08% 76.92% 44.23% 55.77% 28.45% 71.55%

Districts

Quarter 2 19/20Quarter 1 19/20Quarter 4  18/19Quarter 3 18/19

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

50.00%

Quarter 3 18/19 Quarter 4  18/19 Quarter 1 19/20 Quarter 2 19/20

Allerdale Carlisle Copeland Eden Furness South Lakeland

4.0 CONCERNS PROGRESSING TO FULL ENQUIRIES

 Table 4: Progression trend by District

The tables above show the percentage of concerns that progress from formal 
information gathering to Statutory Section 42 enquiries based – the progression rate. 
The progression rate is based upon the decision around whether the concern meets the 
criteria for a section 42 enquiry/ or other enquiry where the local authority believes it is a 
proportionate response. 

For a safeguarding response to be required under the Care Act 2015, the person is 
expected to have support and care needs, experiencing (or at risk of) abuse or neglect 
and being unable to protect themselves because of those needs. The enquiry 
establishes whether any action needs to be taken to prevent or stop abuse, and if so by 
whom.

The progression rate levels, as expected, continue to range around the expected 25 
%(1:4) and 33% (1:3).Districts that have varied at times from this range do not do so 
consistently which would suggest local or seasonal variances  All districts in Quarter 2 
19/20 are within the expected range of conversion.

Work continues to be undertaken with the teams by the interim safeguarding team to 
promote understanding and achieve consistent practice around the county. The 
threshold guidance tool has supported consistent decision making as we see in the data 
from end of quarter 2. 

5.0 MAKING SAFEGUARDING PERSONAL (MSP)

37



8 | P a g e

The Care Act Statutory Guidance states that; “Organisation’s should always promote 
the adult’s wellbeing in their safeguarding arrangements. People have complex lives 
and being safe is only one of the things they want for themselves. Professionals should 
work with the adult to establish what being safe means to them and how that can be 
best achieved. Professionals and other staff should not be advocating ‘safety’ measures 
that do not take account of individual well-being, as defined in Section 1 of the Care 
Act.”  (14.8 Statutory guidance)

It is therefore essential that we support people to define their own outcomes in relation 
to the safeguarding intervention.

5.1 THE NUMBER OF DESIRED OUTCOMES ACHIEVED FOR INDIVIDUALS.  

On completion of an episode where it progressed to full enquiry the adult or their 
representative is asked to respond to the MSP questions. In Cumbria we ask that all 
adults/ or their advocates involved in a Safeguarding Enquiry complete a questionnaire 
to inform us as to how effective we were at respecting their views. Cumbria records the 
highest level of completed questionnaires in the North West. 

** Gaps in data caveat continue to apply for this graph.

The proportion of those people who feel they have fully achieved the desired outcome 
continues to decline reaching 30% whilst the combined value of fully and partially has 
improved to 83%.   Those not achieving their outcomes has reduced.  It should be noted 
that the number of Not Recorded having increased has an impact on the complete 
picture.

Work has been undertaken to determine why some closed enquiries are not having the 
MSP questionnaire completed. Evidence suggests some administrative errors on the 
recording have omitted this.   Weekly automatic reporting now allows for intervention by 
the interim team to prevent future error to the reporting

Figure 7: Completed Enquiries – Percentage of number of Individuals whose desired outcomes have been achieved to 

38



9 | P a g e

Quarter Two 2019/2020 – From client responses to the Making Safeguarding Personal Feedback Questionnaires

5.2 SATISACTION LEVELS REPORTED BY INDIIDUALS

 “Safeguarding means protecting an adult’s right to live in safety, free from abuse and 
neglect. It is about people and Organisation’s working together to prevent and stop both 
the risks and experience of abuse or neglect, while at the same time making sure that 
the adult’s wellbeing is promoted including, where appropriate, having regard to their 
views, wishes, feelings and beliefs in deciding on any action. This must recognise that 
adults sometimes have complex interpersonal relationships and may be ambivalent, 
unclear or unrealistic about their personal circumstances.”
(Care Act Guidance, 14.7)

In response to the questions relating to the adults experience of the safeguarding 
intervention which focuses on inclusion and putting the adult at the heart of decision 
making, it is reassuring that the predominant responses are positive.

The questionnaire comprises of seven questions and the results for the 6 months of the 
Qtr. 2 19/20 period are shown in Figure 8:

39



10 | P a g e

         Figure 8: Satisfaction level cumulative to Quarter 2Quarter  2019/20

5%

Closed Enquries:  Of those - 93% where able to express an opinion.

Have You Had the Outcomes you 
have Wanted?

Do You Feel Listened To?

Did You Feel In Control?

Did We Give You a Chance to Say? Do You Feel Safer?
Are You Happy With What We Did 

For You?
Do You Feel Happier?

Yes, 202, 
54%No, 66, 

18%

Partially, 
103, 28%

Yes, 263, 
71%

No, 53, 
14%

Partially, 
55, 15%

Yes, 278, 
75%

No, 43, 
12%

Partially, 
50, 13%

Yes, 222, 
60%

No, 55, 
15%

Partially, 
94, 25%

Yes, 233, 
63%No, 52, 

14%

Partially, 
86, 23%

Yes, 217, 
58%No, 66, 

18%

Partially, 
88, 24%

Yes, 185, 
50%

No, 73, 
20%

Partially, 
113, 30%

Fully Achieved The 
Outcomes they 

Wanted, 1, 123, 33%

Partially Achieved the 
Outcomes They 

Wanted, 2, 199, 54%

Did Not Achieved the 
Outcomes they 

wanted, 3, 49, 13%

40



11 | P a g e

7.0 ADULT SOCIAL CARE RESTRUCTURE; as part of the thematic approach the Adult 
Safeguarding Service will provide the assurance that the Local Authority is undertaking its 
duties and responsibilities under the Care Act 2014 (Implemented 1/4/2015). 

This service will be responsible for the operational response to all safeguarding concerns 
and enquiries and will:

 Provide a face to face safeguarding enquiries service to members of the public who 
by reason of their care and support needs are unable to protect themselves from 
neglect or abuse.

 Assess the immediate risk of safeguarding concern/s and implement and develop 
protection plans to mitigate against such risks. 

 Complete statutory safeguarding/non-statutory enquiries and reach a conclusion 
when neglect, harm or abuse has occurred and make recommendations of future 
actions.

 Work within the making safeguarding personal agenda.
 Work with key partners to enable them to complete internal enquiries where 

appropriate and audit the findings and actions taken as a safeguarding concern.
 Lead on large scale enquiries where provider failure  where safeguarding concerns 

are indicated

7.1 Threshold tool implementation - to assist in a consistent approach to safeguarding 
 The interim safeguarding team developed and delivered sessions throughout county 

to all operational adults’ services. 

7.2 Safeguarding Adult’s performance reporting - Performance reporting tools: 
 Have been developed and implemented over the past year which identify and 

measure key performance indicators.  This has assisted in providing improved 
services and identifying areas of future development. 

  
8.0 UPDATE FROM CUMBRIA SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD (CSAB)

8.1 SAFEGUARDING ADULTS WEEK - 18-24th November 2019 saw CSAB support the 
national campaign to raise the awareness of Adult Safeguarding:

Key Topics included:  Modern slavery - Domestic abuse - Self-neglect - 
Safeguarding adults in sport and activity.

8.3 MODERN SLAVERY – alongside CSAB Cumbria Safety Partnership have developed 
guidelines on how to respond to concerns regarding modern slavery – 2 successful 
train the trainer events have been held in October and November. – CSP produce a 
monthly headline report and have undertaken the commissioning of training to key 
operational staff throughout the county over the next months.

8.4 SAFEGUARDING ADULTS REVIEW JR - The independent reviewer is near 
completion of the Draft report. Key learning events have been undertaken with the 
staff directly involved. At the time – this includes external and internal staff – wider 
learning events will be Planned.

8.5 WHORLTON HALL – Formal notification was received from the Board chair of LSAB 
County Durham informing CSAB partners of the commissioning of the SAR in respect 
of the Safeguarding concerns raised in respect of Whorlton Hall, County Durham last 
year.   

      

41



12 | P a g e

42



SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD - ADULTS

Meeting date: 16 January 2019

From: Policy and Scrutiny Team

ADULTS SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING

1.0 PURPOSE OF PAPER

1.1. This briefing paper informs members of new or updated items of significance 
to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board.

2.0 ITEMS ARISING FROM FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS             

2.1 The following are key decisions on the forward plan 1 January – 29 February 
2020 for consideration by the Adults Scrutiny Board.

Subject Type of 
Decisio
n

Who 
will 
take it

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Portfolio

Cumbria Integrated
Health and Care
Workforce Strategy
To approve the Cumbria Integrated 
Health and Care Workforce Strategy, 
following recommendation for 
endorsement at the Cumbria Health 
and Wellbeing Board on 13th 
September 2019.

Key 
Decisio
n

Cabinet
on
30 Jan 
2020

Cabinet Member 
for
Customer 
Services,
Transformation 
and
Fire and Rescue

Better Care Fund
2020-2021
To agree the 2020-21 allocations as 
set out in this report, noting there may 
be some revisions following additional 
guidance from NHSE later in the year.
The report also asks for suitable 
delegations to be put in place, in case 
the BCF 2020-21 submission dates do 
not match Cabinet meeting dates.

Key 
Decisio
n

Cabinet
on
30 Jan 
2020

Cabinet Member 
for
Health and Care
Services
Deputy Leader 
and
Cabinet Member 
for
Finance
Leader of the 
Council

43

Agenda Item 9



3.0 PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP

3.1 The Scrutiny Performance Working Group met on 9 October when the 
Quarter 1 Performance Monitoring Report was considered. At time of writing 
the next meeting of the Performance Working Group will take place on the 7 
January where they will consider the Quarter 2 Performance Monitoring 
Report.

JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP

4.1 Scrutiny Management Board has agreed to the request from this Board and 
the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee that the Joint Advisory Group 
continue for a further twelve months. 

4.2 The last meeting of the Group was on Tuesday 22nd October at Cumbria 
House. 

4.3 The session focused on the work being undertaken to prevent and mitigate 
the impact of Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) throughout life.  ACEs 
are stressful or traumatic events, which can happen in childhood and result 
in damaging effects to long-term mental health and even lead to health 
harming behaviours like drug misuse, overeating, unprotected sex and 
smoking.

4.4 Due to it’s cross cutting nature, members of the Children’s Scrutiny Board 
were also invited to participate in this meeting.

4.5 The next meeting will be on the 27 February and will focus on Cumbria’s 
dementia profile.

5.0 WORK PROGRAMME

5.1 Members are invited to consider the updated scrutiny work programme as it 
stands at January 2020.  Please see Appendix 1 attached.

David Stephens – Strategic Policy & Scrutiny Advisor
david.stephens@cumbria.gov.uk

December 2019
________________________________________________________________

44

mailto:david.stephens@cumbria.gov.uk


ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD

Issue Notes Lead Officer Timeline

Scrutiny 
Review Task & 
Finish Groups 

Health and Adult Social 
Care

Joint Advisory Group with the Adults Scrutiny Board to review 
the progress of integrating Health and Care, and consider issues 
which cut across the work programmes of Adults and Health 
Scrutiny

David 
Stephens

Advisory Group 
underway

Cumbria Care To receive a report on plans for future development of Cumbria 
Care

Pam Duke March Board 
Meeting

All Ages Carers Charter An update report to the Board on the development and 
implementation of an All Ages Carers Charter and the support 
offer for Carers in Cumbria. 

Sharon 
Simpson

March Board 
Meeting

Safeguarding Adults at risk 
from abuse and neglect

Standing Item for each board meeting Adrienne 
Halliwell

Ongoing 
Standing Item

Items for 
Future Board 
Meetings

Board Briefing To consider items not covered elsewhere in the Board agenda, 
report from Performance Working Group and to agree work 
programme 

David 
Stephens

Ongoing 
Standing Item

Appendix 1

45



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	6 Adult Social Care Reshaping
	7 Barrow in Furness Drugs Deaths
	8 SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT
	9 ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING
	Appendix 1 SABA 16 01 20 Board Briefing


